
Democratic Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE

Date: Tuesday, 21 March 2017

Contact: Democratic Services (01362) 656295
Email: democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

A G E N D A

ANGLIA REVENUES & BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP
JOINT COMMITTEE

DATE & TIME Tuesday, 28th March, 2017 at 10.00 am
VENUE: Level 5 Meeting Room, Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, 

Thetford  IP24 1BT

For the attention of:

Mr P. M. M. Dimoglou, Breckland Council
Mr D Ambrose Smith, East Cambridgeshire District Council
Mr C Seaton, Fenland District Council (Chairman)
Mr M Barnard, Waveney District Council (Vice-Chairman)
Mr S. Edwards, Forest Heath District Council
Mr I Houlder, St Edmundsbury Borough Council
Mr R Kerry, Suffolk Coastal District Council

PART A
ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES 1 - 2

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2017.

2. APOLOGIES 
To receive apologies for absence.

3. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent business 
pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4. DECLARATIONS 

Public Document Pack



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
28 March 2017

5. PERFORMANCE REPORT (STANDING ITEM) 
Reports of the Operational Board:

a) Operational Performance 3 - 6

b) Balanced Scorecard 7 - 44

c) Financial Performance 45 - 47

6. WELFARE REFORM UPDATE (STANDING ITEM) 48 - 50

Report of ARP Strategic Manager (Benefits), Adrian Mills.

7. TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE 51 - 58

Report of Head of ARP, Paul Corney.

8. FORTHCOMING ISSUES (STANDING ITEM) 
To note any items.

9. NEXT MEETING 
To note the arrangements for the next meeting to be held on Tuesday 20 June 
at 10:00am, Level 5 Meeting Room, Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, 
Thetford, IP24 1BT.

10. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
To consider passing the following resolution:

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act.”

PART B - ITEMS FROM WHICH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
ARE EXCLUDED

11. RISK BASED VERIFICATION POLICY REVIEW REPORT - MARCH 2017 59 - 71

Report of Strategic Manager (Benefits), Adrian Mills.

12. PARTNERSHIP WORKING THROUGH SECTION 101 AGREEMENT 72 - 77

Report of Head of ARP, Paul Corney.

Page(s)
herewith



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
FOREST HEATH DISTRICT COUNCIL

EAST CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
ST EDMUNDSBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

FENLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
WAVENEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

SUFFOLK COASTAL DISTRICT COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

ANGLIA REVENUES AND BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP JOINT COMMITTEE

Held on Tuesday, 10 January 2017 at 10.00 am in the
Level 5 Meeting Room, Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, Thetford  IP24 1BT

PRESENT
Mr D Ambrose Smith
Mr C Seaton (Chairman)
Mr M Barnard (Vice-Chairman)
Mr P. M. M. Dimoglou

Mr S. Edwards
Mr I Houlder
Mr R Kerry

In Attendance
Rob Bridge - Corporate Director (Fenland)
Alison Chubbock - Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151 

Officer) (BDC)
Paul Corney - Head of ARP
Jill Korwin - Director (Forest Heath & St Edmundsbury)
Homira Javadi - Corporate Director (Suffolk Coastal and 

Waveney District Councils)
Teresa Smith
Ian Smith

- Democratic Services Team Leader
- Principle Accountant

Action By
1/17 MINUTES 

The notes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016 were confirmed.

2/17 APOLOGIES 

None.

3/17 URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

4/17 DECLARATIONS 

None.

5/17 ARP JOINT COMMITTEE PARTNERSHIP BUDGET 

The Chief Accountant (Breckland) presented the report to Members.  It was 
outlined that in December 2015 the Joint Committee approved a strategic 
budget for ARP which kept the base budget whilst creating an investment 
fund used to invest in trading, growth, efficiencies, which in turn delivered 
savings for future years.  The proposed budget continued with this approach 
and included the same level of efficiency targets as set in the previous year.

1

Agenda Item 1



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
10 January 2017

2

The transformation programme had made good progress to date, delivering 
some efficiency savings in 2016-17 earlier than forecasted.

It was RESOLVED that:
1) The partnership budget  at Appendix A for 2017-18 of the report be 

approved;
2) That the full 2016-17 underspend is allocated as follows:

i) £10k is contributed to the ARP investment fund to be spent on 
production of a compendium of company documents for ARP 
Trading

ii) Up to a maximum of £171k be held in reserve to cover any timing 
shortfall in achievement of efficiencies in 2017-18

iii) The remaining balance be distributed back to partners.

6/17 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

The Head of ARP wanted to inform Members that he had received a 
consultation paper for views on the use of video conferencing for combined 
authorities and joint committees.  West Suffolk had also drafted a response 
and the Head of ARP would also add to this.

Members were in agreement with this as it would allow for Members to attend 
a meeting of the Joint Committee at their council office rather than travel 
some distance to attend meetings.  The Chairman felt there was still value in 
sitting at the table to discuss issues, but added that it would make sense 
especially where a substitute was required at short notice.

7/17 NEXT MEETING 

The arrangements for the next meeting on Tuesday 28 March 2017 at 
10:00am at Breckland House were noted.

The meeting closed at 10.09 am

CHAIRMAN

Action By

2



Benefits & Fraud
Benefits performance

Benefits performance continues to meet profiled targets and is on course to achieve year end targets, 
except Council Tax Support cases at Waveney, which is forecast to miss target due to Universal Credit 
issues. 
As previously reported, Universal Credit delays, increased customer contact and evidence gather to 
determine Local Council Tax Support entitlements has impacted processing at Waveney; these matters 
have been raised locally and nationally through the UC/LA Steering group attended by the Strategic 
Manager (Benefits), as well as by the Council Leader with the MP and DWP leading to a meeting with 
the UC Minister.

With regard to target setting for 2017/18, the following table details current targets, current performance 
and proposes maintaining the current targets:

 

Fraud and compliance performance

Following the transfer of Housing Benefit fraud to the DWP on the 1 September 2015, the team have 
been tasked, in accordance with the Business Case approved by Joint Committee, to identify and 
prevent fraud leading to an increase in Council Tax income in the following areas:

 Local Council Tax Support 
 Single Person Discount
 Council Tax & Non Domestic Rates
 Tenancy fraud

Continued funding has been secured from Norfolk and Suffolk County Councils to support the review 
of Single Person Discounts and negotiations are taking place to secure funding from Cambridgeshire 
for future years. 

Furthermore, the team are working with Housing Teams and Housing Associations to tackle Right to 
buy and subletting abuse and is having success in this area. 

Performance measure 2016/17 target 2016/17 
performance

Proposed 
2017/18 target

Ben 1:  average days 
to process Council 
Tax Reduction new 
claims & changes

8 days Within target to 
10* days

*Waveney only

8 days

BEN 2:  average days 
to process Housing 
Benefits new claims & 
changes

8 days Within target 8 days

Local Authority error 
overpayments 

<0.35% Within target <0.35%

3

Agenda Item 5a



The table below records the excellent work of the team, on track to exceed targets for the year. 

The Strategic Manager (Benefits) continues to participate in a national DWP/LA Housing Benefit 
Operational Steering Group to have input into shaping and influencing current and proposed 
operational matters. ARP challenged DWP plans to introduce expansion of data exchange to LAs 
when the initial testing had not fully proved concept; when implementation downtime was not 
acceptable to business as usual and importantly proposed to introduce significant change during the 
busy annual billing and uprating period. DWP revised their plans including further pilot testing and 
have delayed implementation until after the annual billing exercise. Furthermore, ARP continues to 
take a lead rule influencing and shaping national procedures regarding DWP working practices for the 
investigation of Housing Benefit.    

Revenues
Performance continues to meet targets in all areas with the exception of Non-Domestic Rates 
collection for Suffolk Coastal District Council, Breckland Council & Fenland District Council. The 
reason behind the drop in NNDR collection for Suffolk Coastal was reported at previous Joint 
Committees and is due to a large back dated reduction in Rateable Value for one property of £1.03M, 
resulting in a refund of £2,376,811 paid in April 2016.  Breckland and Fenland District Council’s 
targets have also not been met due to large backdated appeals on purpose built Doctors surgeries for 
which provision has been made in the accounts. 

The funding secured from Suffolk, Norfolk and Cambridgeshire County Councils has enabled the 
further recovery work to continue this financial year.  Suffolk and Norfolk County Council have 
agreed to continue this funding and negotiations will continue with Cambridgeshire County Council.  
The further recovery team have collected £462,465.11 in this financial year which includes 
£208,068.55 in respect of cases raised this year.

The Enforcement Team continue to perform well, having collected £4.5 Million since the team started 
of which £3.2 Million has been in this financial year.  Unfortunately having appointed a further 
Certificated Enforcement Agent to the team another has resigned.  Therefore there are currently 4 
Enforcement Agents, out of a full complement of 5, carrying out visits. We are currently advertising 

Description of financial saving 

2016/17 target Performance 
1.4.16- 
31.12.16

Single Person Discount fraud 500,000 414,943

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
fraud

150,000 174,072

Tenancy fraud 400,000 432,000

Other (Council Tax and NDR) 250,000 232,593

Total financial savings 1,300,000 1,253,608

4



for a fifth Enforcement Agent.  The collection is still broadly in line with the previous private sector 
bailiffs although monies collected by the in-house team will be allocated to fees first whereas in the 
case of external agents monies are apportioned between the debt and fees.  We continue to meet the 
cost of running the service through fees collection and we are on target to produce a surplus in this 
financial year approaching £500k.

Single discount applications continue to be checked by the compliance team in order to prevent 
discounts being granted incorrectly and avoiding the issue of trying to collect amounts of Council Tax 
retrospectively.  An annual review will also be carried out.

An NNDR revaluation is taking place with effect from 1 April 2017 with an antecedent date of 1 
April 2015.  The first draft of the new Valuation List was available on 30 September 2016 with an 
updated version on 31 December 2016.  The team have ensured all the NNDR databases have been 
updated with the new rateable values and balanced in readiness for the annual billing exercise.  
Nationally the total rateable value has increased and consequently the multiplier will reduce as the 
overall effect of a revaluation is neutralised.  The multiplier has been confirmed at 47.9p or 46.6p for 
small businesses compared to the current financial year of 49.7p and 48.4p respectively.

The following changes have also been made:-

 Small business rates relief has being extended.  Ratepayers with only one property will 
receive 100% relief where their rateable value is up to £12,000 RV and tapered relief up to 
£15000 RV.  

 Ratepayers who have a rateable value below £51,000 will have their bill based on the small 
multiplier. 

 There will also be a transitional relief scheme which will cushion the impact of large rate 
increases.  This will be a self-funding scheme and consequently and properties seeing a large 
reduction will have a premium applied to their account.  

 Mandatory Rural rate relief has also been increased from 50% to 100%.
 Government is funding rate relief of £1500 for local newspaper offices.
 The minimum RV for charging Empty Property Rates has been increased from £2600 to 

£2900
 Explanatory notes which have previously been sent with the business rates bills can now be 

published on the internet instead.

In the budget on 8 March 2017 the Chancellor announced further help for small businesses, public 
houses and additional funding for a discretionary relief scheme to help businesses facing the steepest 
increases.  The Government has given initial guidance on the first of these and is currently consulting 
on the operation of the other two. 

Support 
Annual Billing 2017-18

As part of the Digital Transformation project, using “eye tracking” and “nudge” techniques a redesign 
of both the front and back of the Council Tax Bills has taken place. This has been undertaken by the 
System Admin team resulting in all partners of the Anglia Revenues Partnership able to share the 

5



same design. The eye tracking enables the layout of the bill design to maximise the effectiveness of 
getting the correct information to the customer. 

The System Admin team and the Quality Assurance team have performed a full year end testing 
process which includes a Business Rates revaluation and a new parish in Waveney affecting 27,000 
properties in Lowestoft and Oulton Broad. With over 360,000 Council Tax bills, Business Rates and 
Benefits notifications being produced, it is vital for our external mailers to have the full output in 
order to identify any potential problems that could be encountered when carried out in Live.  

The programme of annual billing is from February 21st with planned completion by mid-March and 
will includes two weekends of work for the system admin team. At all times, as last year, we will 
endeavour to keep at least three partners data available to work on through the whole process, keeping 
all staff productive during this time and able to work on any of the available databases. 

ICT upgrade 

Following the completion of a major CAPITA system upgrade (RHEL6) for Breckland DC, Forest 
Heath DC, St Edmundsbury DC, East Cambs DC, Waveney DC and Suffolk Coastal DC, the  System 
Admin Team, in conjunction with ICT, have upgraded the Fenland DC database along with a 
migration from a Windows platform to a Linux platform that was completed during December. This 
has now resulted in all seven databases using the same structure enabling consistent working practices 
across all seven partners’ Revenues and Benefits Data.

E-billing and Landlord online account

As part the preparation for channel shift, every customer of the partner councils of the ARP has the 
ability to sign up to view their Council Tax, Business Rates, Benefits payments and E-billing via the 
ARP Website. For each sign up, the postal cost for billing to the customer will be eliminated with all 
new bills and notifications available online. As with all online portals, details can be accessed twenty 
four hours a day, seven days a week and it is also anticipated the use of the online account will reduce 
the number of customer contacts.

Landlords are also able to access all payments made direct to them via this facility, with payments 
information available as soon as the payment file has been produced by the system giving advance 
notification of payment details. Landlords can also view any correspondence from Housing Benefits, 
electronically. 

6



Corporate Balanced Scorecard - Dashboard
As at end Dec 2016

Customer Customer

Performance Management

Channel Shift
Customer Satisfaction

Budget Management

Learning and GrowthInternal Process

Collection

Customer

Fraud

Performance ManagementCollection

Collection

Financial

Customer Satisfaction

Fraud

Internal Process

Financial

Performance Management

Channel Shift
Customer Satisfaction Collection

Budget Management

Learning and Growth

Internal Process

Customer Financial Customer

Internal ProcessLearning and Growth

Fraud
Collection

Customer Satisfaction
Channel ShiftBudget Management

Collection
Budget Management Channel Shift

Customer Satisfaction
Channel Shift

Financial

Internal Process

Financial

Learning and Growth Internal Process Learning and Growth

Collection

Customer

Customer Satisfaction
Channel Shift

Collection
Budget Management

Collection

Performance Management

Customer Financial

Learning and Growth

Collection

Collection
Fraud

Budget Management

Fraud

Performance Management

Collection Performance Management

Performance Management

Financial

Collection
Channel Shift Budget Management

Internal Process

Customer Satisfaction

Collection

Learning and Growth

7

Agenda Item 5b



Current Year

Target
 £-

 £200,000.00

 £400,000.00

 £600,000.00

 £800,000.00

 £1,000,000.00

 £1,200,000.00

 £1,400,000.00

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £230,094.6 £462,651.3 £706,924.5 £771,032.8 £846,647.3 £950,324.0 £1,038,853 £1,170,100 £1,234,690

Previous Year £340,000.0 £397,227.3 £462,244.9 £556,068.1 £627,899.9 £768,190.6 £873,949.3

Target £860,000.0 £860,000.0 £860,000.0 £860,000.0 £860,000.0 £860,000.0 £1,300,000 £1,300,000 £1,300,000 £1,300,000 £1,300,000 £1,300,000

Value of Fraud Identified

This indicator measures the value of fraud identified by the ARP Fraud team, the 
target is to achieve the savings in the business case. 

Internal Process Dimension Fraud

8



Customer Dimension
Channel Shift 

Current Year

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 1974 5160 7777 10286 13038 15693 18189 21343 23529
Previous Year 859 1173 2577 3449 4346 5106 6243 7205 7923 9423 13257 19288

Number of e-forms (All councils)

This shows the number of E-Forms (Victoria Forms)  received by ARP for both 
Benefits and Council Tax.  Although this area has not previously been targeted, our 
aim is to continuously increase this form of communication by making the process 
user friendly and achieve an upward trend.

9



2015-16

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / 
e-claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

% Successful 
investigations

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Breckland Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

s
s

Fraud

Days to process

10



Breckland Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

Current Year
Previous Year

Target

£0
£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £3,735,480 £6,476,041 £9,245,250 £12,272,373 £15,531,309 £18,356,071 £21,034,817 £23,128,412 £25,677,489

Previous Year £3,937,947 £6,190,463 £9,192,667 £11,499,214 £14,896,122 £17,573,483 £20,203,169 £22,697,784 £25,344,144 £27,911,538 £28,959,573 £29,887,800

Target £4,116,126 £6,658,305 £9,193,961 £11,896,389 £14,598,940 £18,200,458 £20,913,951 £23,623,724 £26,333,246 £29,042,773 £30,015,755 £30,897,450

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.   

Collection is behind target due to large backdated appeals in respect of purpose built Doctors 
surgeries. Provision has been made in the accounts.

11



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

£0
£10,000,000
£20,000,000
£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £6,719,736 £12,865,033 £18,866,157 £24,775,906 £30,777,200 £36,780,487 £43,001,639 £48,953,489 £54,921,742

Previous Year £6,353,631 £11,954,308 £17,683,369 £23,241,599 £28,836,240 £34,579,673 £40,544,139 £46,178,834 £51,861,643 £57,364,644 £59,196,532 £61,140,093

Target £6,756,421 £12,713,819 £18,590,484 £24,442,550 £30,227,421 £36,207,950 £42,479,974 £48,337,378 £54,728,653 £59,871,809 £61,864,642 £64,085,074

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection. 

12



 

Current Year

Previous Year
Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 9.04 8.9 9.2 9.32 8.8 8.51 8.4 8.09 7.92
Previous Year 8.5 7.1 6.5 6.2 5.8 6 6 5.9 5.9 6.2 6.3 6.4
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Breckland Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to Process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

13



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.27 7.9 8.3 8.56 8.2 7.9 7.9 7.59 7.47
Previous Year 8.3 6.7 6.3 6 5.7 5.8 5.8 5.7 5.7 5.9 6.1 5.1
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

14



2015-16

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift
Number of e-
citizens / e-claims / 
e-forms
Council Tax 
Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary ECDC Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
Pr

oc
es

s

15



ECDC Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

Current Year
Previous Year

Target

£0
£2,000,000
£4,000,000
£6,000,000
£8,000,000

£10,000,000
£12,000,000
£14,000,000
£16,000,000
£18,000,000
£20,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £2,329,381 £4,069,332 £6,024,676 £8,083,131 £9,616,729 £11,641,315 £13,261,693 £14,998,259 £16,834,160

Previous Year £1,952,694 £3,448,505 £5,231,560 £7,177,574 £8,711,192 £10,423,831 £12,241,803 £14,012,592 £15,727,545 £17,555,008 £18,245,197 £18,753,782

Target £2,252,671 £3,967,196 £5,686,949 £7,560,005 £9,169,792 £10,940,642 £12,686,427 £14,449,571 £16,164,807 £17,970,245 £18,547,686 £19,012,849

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

16



Current Year

Previous Year
Target

£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £6,719,736 £9,190,827 £13,681,281 £18,095,030 £22,568,789 £27,061,501 £31,437,981 £35,905,802 £40,354,386

Previous Year £4,736,419 £9,203,598 £13,524,927 £17,907,770 £22,159,148 £26,560,589 £30,898,813 £35,258,070 £39,567,432 £43,740,962 £44,529,601 £45,798,234

Target £4,285,098 £9,144,017 £13,429,115 £17,853,944 £22,292,746 £26,731,548 £31,202,032 £35,673,438 £40,144,845 £44,616,251 £45,226,412 £46,577,149

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

17



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 9.07 9.16 9.1 9.26 8.8 8.53 8.5 8.21 8.11
Previous Year 8.4 8.4 6.6 6.3 6.2 6.1 6.3 6.2 6.1 6.4 6.6 6.5
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

ECDC Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

18



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.28 8.09 8.1 8.32 7.9 7.68 7.7 7.51 7.4
Previous Year 7.9 7.9 6.3 6 5.9 6.4 6.1 5.9 5.8 6.1 6.3 5
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

19



2015-16

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift
Number of e-
citizens / e-claims / 
e-forms

Council Tax 
Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Fenland Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

20



Current Year

Previous Year
Target

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £3,189,700 £5,797,206 £7,934,610 £10,414,467 £12,514,053 £14,439,636 £16,697,139 £19,050,732 £21,296,798

Previous Year £2,731,431 £5,393,032 £7,856,688 £10,163,530 £12,560,133 £14,933,197 £17,450,798 £19,566,240 £22,117,018 £24,362,426 £25,163,985 £25,829,913

Target £2,861,063 £5,300,615 £7,718,242 £10,008,853 £12,368,028 £14,544,208 £17,013,392 £19,325,864 £21,736,668 £24,165,244 £24,941,300 £25,603,190

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

Fenland Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

Collection is behind target due to large backdated appeals in respect of purpose built Doctors 
surgeries. Provision has been made in the accounts.

21



Current Year

Previous Year
Target

£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £4,815,854 £9,485,557 £14,041,731 £18,575,505 £23,150,043 £27,732,813 £32,337,917 £36,935,987 £41,444,230

Previous Year £4,650,445 £9,170,486 £13,646,912 £18,079,089 £22,474,717 £26,975,216 £31,384,951 £35,790,974 £40,179,214 £44,369,472 £45,364,371 £46,605,636

Target £4,869,516 £9,404,850 £13,882,896 £18,260,686 £22,819,890 £27,698,955 £32,234,289 £36,793,493 £41,352,697 £45,539,526 £46,561,169 £47,740,356

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

We are on target for the current year.  

22



Fenland Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 9.74 8.51 9 8.56 8 7.69 7.55 7.53 7.55
Previous Year 11.1 9.1 8.1 7.6 7.3 7.6 7.4 7.3 7.1 7.2 7.2 8.2
Target 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims and 
changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

23



Current Year
Previous Year
Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 9.34 8.16 8.6 8.33 7.8 7.51 7.44 7.48 7.53
Previous Year 11.4 9.5 8.3 7.7 7.4 7.7 7.4 7.3 7.1 7.2 6.8 6.1
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes against 
agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

24



2015-16

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift
Number of e-
citizens / e-claims / 
e-forms

Council Tax 
Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Forest Heath Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
Pr

oc
es

s

25



Forest Heath Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

Current Year
Previous Year

Target

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £2,352,009 £4,580,508 £6,647,284 £8,754,472 £10,797,869 £13,271,694 £15,375,892 £17,482,650 £19,528,242

Previous Year £2,329,090 £4,319,623 £6,387,003 £8,346,746 £10,409,160 £12,656,498 £14,615,295 £16,477,477 £18,410,349 £20,315,832 £21,465,158 £22,546,750

Target £2,359,027 £4,318,338 £6,343,705 £8,346,042 £10,412,642 £12,511,922 £14,515,740 £16,502,530 £18,493,588 £20,487,412 £21,400,923 £22,263,404

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

26



Current Year

Previous Year
Target

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £2,640,659 £5,204,284 £7,743,192 £10,253,913 £12,776,544 £15,274,717 £17,824,974 £20,319,792 £22,810,813

Previous Year £2,758,691 £5,172,216 £7,634,710 £10,060,947 £12,385,416 £14,807,870 £17,249,986 £19,661,561 £22,047,125 £24,368,858 £24,844,775 £26,120,629

Target £2,826,981 £5,297,625 £7,733,486 £10,191,375 £12,595,441 £15,109,418 £17,592,135 £19,994,350 £22,526,415 £24,904,820 £25,620,264 £26,593,479

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

27



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.35 7.74 8.2 8.64 8.2 7.99 7.9 7.73 7.68
Previous Year 8.5 8.5 6.8 5.9 6.4 6.5 6.4 6.3 6.3 6.5 6.5 6.5
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Forest Heath Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

28



Current Year
Previous Year
Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.05 6.97 7.4 7.92 7.6 7.49 7.5 7.33 7.22
Previous Year 7.6 7.6 6.1 5.3 5.8 5.9 6 5.8 5.8 6.1 5.1 5.1
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

29



2015-16

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift
Number of e-
citizens / e-claims / 
e-forms

Council Tax 
Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary St. Edmundsbury Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

30



St Edmundsbury Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

C…

P…

T…

£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £5,037,412 £10,133,657 £14,532,913 £18,896,983 £23,504,378 £28,594,555 £32,816,415 £36,979,353 £41,101,996

Previous Year £5,128,955 £10,004,206 £14,500,671 £18,644,556 £22,678,132 £27,694,936 £31,669,011 £35,665,537 £39,701,573 £43,736,833 £45,531,528 £46,977,833

Target £5,208,199 £10,183,496 £14,279,993 £18,426,831 £22,610,370 £27,785,104 £31,956,753 £36,118,492 £40,276,642 £44,434,773 £45,883,931 £47,266,009

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

31



Current Year

Previous Year
Target

£0
£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £5,501,470 £10,956,665 £16,428,716 £21,792,813 £27,253,821 £32,662,386 £38,066,599 £43,400,947 £48,809,028

Previous Year £5,455,306 £10,776,690 £16,127,067 £21,386,391 £26,489,332 £31,784,052 £37,122,802 £42,345,167 £47,561,323 £52,639,824 £53,357,194 £55,057,157

Target £5,675,150 £11,110,747 £16,335,761 £21,701,713 £26,901,983 £32,260,425 £37,665,617 £42,849,160 £48,175,464 £53,334,459 £54,265,560 £55,510,406

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

32



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.26 7.8 8.2 7.92 7.4 7.19 7.1 6.86 6.79
Previous Year 7 6.3 6 5.9 5.7 5.8 5.9 5.9 5.9 6.1 6.1 6.3
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

St Edmundsbury Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

33



Current Year
Previous Year
Target

0
2
4
6
8

10

12

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 6.88 6.76 6.8 6.75 6.4 6.44 6.5 6.36 6.28
Previous Year 6.7 5.7 5.4 5.3 5.3 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.7 5 5
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are achieving targets for the year.

34



2015-16

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / 
e-claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Suffolk Coastal Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

35



Suffolk Coastal Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

Current Year
Previous Year

Target

£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Current Year £3,612,594 £9,649,738 £16,383,254 £22,518,054 £29,379,886 £36,370,768 £42,490,577 £48,501,951 £54,434,185

Previous Year £7,666,641 £12,668,992 £17,937,154 £23,812,347 £30,346,877 £37,369,583 £43,672,565 £49,380,133 £55,096,077 £60,830,295 £64,031,238 £67,201,211

Target £6,348,885 £12,256,279 £17,543,897 £23,858,264 £30,425,085 £37,103,134 £43,028,483 £49,051,926 £55,083,315 £61,111,839 £65,287,827 £68,440,441

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

Collection is behind target due to two particularly large back dated reductions in rateable value. 
The Finance Team are aware of this reduction.

36



C…

P…

T…

£0

£20,000,000

£40,000,000

£60,000,000

£80,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £7,726,547 £14,847,611 £22,101,776 £29,078,985 £36,306,026 £43,744,516 £50,834,662 £57,845,952 £64,873,692

Previous Year £7,744,187 £14,644,946 £21,591,440 £28,363,993 £35,159,053 £42,388,647 £49,199,408 £56,029,922 £62,812,858 £69,398,509 £70,742,093 £72,808,916

Target £6,888,201 £15,028,082 £21,991,940 £28,989,405 £36,212,210 £43,551,367 £50,624,500 £57,478,754 £64,522,424 £70,589,772 £72,311,352 £73,531,012

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

37



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-16
Jun-16

Aug-16
Oct-16

Dec-16
Feb-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 7.83 7.45 8.1 8.73 8.3 8.27 8.42 8.51 8.39
Previous Year 13.33 11.57 10.69 10.1 9.98 9.85 9.57 9.28 8.98 8.87 8.54 8.45
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & 
changes 

Suffolk Coastal Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to Process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note that we are on target for the current year.

38



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14

Apr-16May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 7.61 7.14 7.7 8.26 8 7.99 8.32 8.43 8.18
Previous Year 12.32 11.16 10.39 9.79 9.8 9.82 9.59 9.34 8.94 8.87 6.82 6.75
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note that we are on target for the current year.

39



2016-15

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

YT
D

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / 
e-claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Waveney Scorecard as at end Dec 2016

2016-17

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

40



Waveney Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

Current Year
Previous Year

Target

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £2,253,532 £4,422,355 £7,039,891 £9,666,535 £12,569,086 £15,380,724 £17,964,741 £20,245,237 £22,684,428

Previous Year £2,269,837 £4,714,615 £6,734,096 £9,665,666 £12,148,006 £15,766,748 £18,023,918 £20,256,664 £22,555,678 £24,963,499 £25,751,223 £26,751,239

Target £2,335,903 £4,710,916 £6,621,541 £9,530,975 £12,039,651 £15,531,049 £17,899,573 £20,204,231 £22,508,423 £24,813,222 £25,897,111 £26,847,083

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.

41



Current Year

Previous Year
Target

£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year £5,174,000 £10,108,582 £14,883,072 £21,328,673 £24,342,665 £29,057,314 £34,161,521 £38,893,211 £43,560,587

Previous Year £6,894,204 £9,871,555 £14,501,280 £19,128,295 £23,732,797 £28,401,666 £33,193,654 £37,888,135 £42,439,269 £46,951,981 £49,366,877 £52,261,003

Target £5,504,325 £10,188,293 £14,702,898 £19,217,502 £24,646,822 £28,576,035 £33,737,753 £38,596,819 £43,461,193 £48,313,124 £50,733,137 £52,926,197

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the 
financial year against actual collection.

42



Current Year
Previous Year

Target

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.7 8.73 9.8 10.1 10.3 10.84 11.2 11.26 11.21
Previous Year 17.55 16.54 15.61 15.14 14.9 14.44 13.68 12.83 12.34 12.19 11.82 11.4
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Waveney Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to Process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims and 
changes against agreed targets. 

Performance is below target and expected to slightly miss final target for the year due to Universal Credit 
delays following the introduction of the Universal Credit Full Service. Measures have been put in place to 
turnaround performance and to prevent further increases in the number of days to process. The situation is 
improving but we are reliant upon Universal Credit data and it should be noted Universal Credit is not 
delaying Housing Benefit in the same way. We are working with the DWP to resolve and improve the impact 
of the Universal Credit Full Service at Waveney, which is informing our planning for the roll out schedule.

43



Current Year
Previous Year
Target

0

5

10

15

20

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17
Current Year 8.04 7.59 8.08 9.62 9.5 9.8 10 9.93 9.75
Previous Year 16.15 14.42 14.35 14.08 14.03 13.74 13.12 12.37 11.7 11.53 11.2 8.61
Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

The direction of travel of current performance is indicating that the year end target for this 
indicator should be achieved.

44



Description

Approved Budget 

2016/17

Forecast Actuals            

2016/17

Forecast Variance 

Over/(Under) Variance Notes

£ £ £ %

Employee Related Costs 7,980,051 7,826,630 (153,422) (1.92) 1

Premises Related Costs 268,860 262,496 (6,364) (2.37) 2

Transport Related Costs 115,522 122,741 7,219 6.25 3

Supplies & Services 1,468,339 1,391,367 (76,972) (5.24) 4

Support Services 559,053 575,708 16,655 2.98 5

Income (922,561) (1,289,791) (367,230) 39.81 6

TOTAL PARTNERSHIP COSTS 9,469,264 8,889,151 (580,113) (6.13)

Balance of Grants received 2016/17, not spent at 31.3.17 0 (65,137) (65,137) 7

TOTAL PARTNERSHIP COSTS 9,469,264 8,824,014 (645,250) (6.81)

Variance Notes

7.  This figure relates to the balance of grant funding received in the year. Examples of funding received include FERIS (Fraud & Error Reduction Incentive Scheme), 

RTI BDM (Real Time Information Bulk Data Matching initiative) and LADS (Local Authority Data Share). 

6.  Income is mainly up due to the success of the Bailiff service (£319k higher than budget), and this is an achieved efficiency that has been reflected in the budget for 

future years. An additional £48k rechargeable income has been achieved, and this relates to a combination of recharging for additional inserts that Councils have 

requested and funding for Tenancy Fraud work.

Anglia Revenues Partnership Joint Committee

Forecast Full Year Financial Performance as at 31st January 2017

1.  The employee under spend is due to a combination of vacancies during the first 9 months of the year, and posts being filled at the bottom of pay grades. It is 

anticipated that most of the vacant posts will be filled. There are also additional savings relating to Pensions as these were budgeted for but some staff have opted out 

of the scheme. These savings have been reflected in the new budget for future years.

2.  This variance relates to below budget rental costs to date, and this has been reflected in the new budget for future years.

4.  Supplies & Services are lower than budget due to lower direct postage and stationery costs (see also note 5). These savings are offset slightly by additional bank 

charges which relate to the enforcement service, and an increase in indirect postage costs. The postage and stationery savings represent an achieved efficiency and 

these are reflected in future year budgets.

5.  Support Services costs are higher than budget due to an increase in indirect postage costs, however these are off-set by lower direct postage costs (see note 4).

3.  Two additional lease vehicles have been acquired for the Bailiff service, compared to the original budget. This is fully covered by additional income. 

45

A
genda Item

 5c



Transformation funding - committed expenditure as follows;

Description

Approved Budget 

2016/17

Forecast Actuals            

2016/17

Re-allocated            Forecast Variance 

Over/(Under)

Forecast Actuals            

2017/18

£ £ £ £ £

Already committed from grant funding received last year

Website 7,575 0 0 (7,575) 7,575

FOI 3 Year Cover 24,848 23,569 (1,279) 0 0

Mitel Join Up 35,000 0 0 (35,000) 35,000

Redhat 39,000 38,400 (600) 0 0

EDMS 50,000 0 (45,000) (5,000) 5,000

Total 156,423 61,969 (46,879) (47,575) 47,575

New commitments 2016/17 approved by OIB

Digital - Temporary staff (2) Civica 50,000 51,739 36,739 (35,000) 35,000

Digital - West Suffolk IT Staff 47,834 18,047 (29,787) 0 0

Digital - New servers (2) & Memory 20,500 20,500 0 0 0

Digital - Capita Connect 130,000 123,458 0 (6,542) 6,542

Commercial - J Russell Research Consultancy 6,000 6,000 0 0 0

Commercial - Marketing 60,000 2,000 (58,000) 0 0

Total 314,334 221,744 (51,048) (41,542) 41,542

Indicative amounts not yet released 2016/17 

Digital - Sharing Intelligence 10,000 0 0 (10,000) 10,000

Organisational - Develop agile orgn 10,000 0 0 (10,000) 10,000

Commercial - Accredited trainer 10,000 0 0 (10,000) 10,000

Total 30,000 0 0 (30,000) 30,000

Un-allocated 269 0 97,927 (98,196) 0

Grand Total 501,026 283,713 0 (217,313) 119,117

If all of the identified expenditure goes through in 2016/17 there will be £217,313 remaining of the original £501,026 in the Transformation fund at 31st March 2017, with £98,196 un-

allocated

46



Efficiency details 2017/18 - 2019/20 Budgets

Description

Draft Budget 

2017/18

Draft Budget 

2018/19

Draft Budget 

2019/20

£ £ £

ARP Efficiency Targets 531,824 1,017,397 1,017,397

Efficiencies made to date:

Postage costs (20,960) (19,250) (15,670) 

County Council Fraud funding (Income) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) 

Enforcement Service (234,736) (215,693) (202,642) 

Total Efficiencies Made to Date (360,696) (339,943) (323,312) 

Remaining Efficiency Target 171,128 677,454 694,085

The above table shows the actual efficiencies identified to date against the original annual budget targets. 

47



ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP

Report of Adrian Mills – ARP Strategic Manager (Benefits)

To:             ARP Joint Committee, 28th March 2017 

Subject: Welfare Reform

Purpose: To provide an update on welfare reform

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1.1.1 Welfare Reform was introduced by the previous Government as part of wider fiscal 
measures to reduce deficits, intended to encourage work whilst reducing increasing 
welfare expenditure.

2.0 Matters of interest

2.1 Universal Credit

2.1.1 All Councils have been live with new claims from single unemployed customers since 
April 2016. 

2.1.2 In respect of Universal Credit for these customers the numbers affected continues to be 
lower than those forecast, whilst Council’s receive funding to provide services in 
partnership with the DWP.

2.1.3 Since May 2016 the DWP embarked upon a programme to expand Universal Credit in 
a controlled manner to the full, digital, Universal Credit service. Amongst the partner 
Councils, only Waveney has been live with the full service since May 2016. 

2.1.4 On 16 November 2016 the DWP announced the roll out schedule for all Jobcentres and 
Councils for the period April 2017 to September 2018. The full Universal Credit service 
will be open to all new claims from all working age claimant groups. This will also 
include customers currently receiving existing Benefits or Tax Credits who have a 
change of circumstances that triggers a new claim to Universal Credit. The following 
table states the DWPs current planning assumptions for ARP Councils:

Council Roll out 

St Edmundsbury October 2017
Waveney (Beccles) October 2017
Breckland March 2018
East Cambridgeshire May 2018
Fenland May 2018
Suffolk Coastal June 2018
Forest Heath September 2018

Recommendation(s):

 That the report is noted

48

Agenda Item 6



2.1.5 Waveney has not been alone in experiencing difficulties with the Full Service; customer 
assistance taking longer than predicted, IT problems, delays awarding payments and 
alternative payment arrangements to landlords are causing issues with rent collection 
for landlords. 

2.1.6 These matters have been raised locally and through the UC/LA Steering group I have 
brought these issues to attention of the UC Programme; furthermore representations 
have been made to the DWP Secretary of State leading to a recent meeting between 
the Waveney Leader, local MP and myself with the UC Minister at Lowestoft Jobcentre. 

2.1.7 ARP will work with Customer Services and Housing Options teams to plan for the roll 
out timetable.

2.1.8 The programme to migrate existing Housing Benefit (and other DWP Benefit and Tax 
Credits) cases, has been delayed by twelve months and so will now commence in July 
2019, with a corresponding delayed completion date of March 2022. 

2.1.9 DWP have also reviewed the position for Pensioners, stating this will reviewed during 
the next Parliament and will not start until after March 2022, and only when all Working 
Age cases have migrated to Universal Credit.  

2.2 Discretionary Housing Payment 

2.2.1 Spend continues to be within DWP grant and is forecast to be closer to, but within the 
grant. The main area of expenditure continues to be to assist customers with rent 
shortfalls, in particular due to restrictions on Housing Benefit rent levels. The scheme 
is promoted through our stakeholder contacts. 

2.2.2 Discretionary Housing Payment grant is funded by DWP, designed to help customers 
remain in their homes or to move to affordable and sustainable accommodation.

2.3 Benefit Cap

2.3.1 DWP introduced the reduced Benefit Cap on the 7th November 2016; the maximum 
family income before the Benefit Cap applies reduced from £26,000 to £20,000 
(£13,400 for single adults with no children).

2.3.2 The number of our customers now affected ranges from 46 to 105 per partner Local 
Authority. The Benefit Service continues to work with colleagues in Customer Service 
and Housing Options teams to seek to avoid homelessness and the cost of temporary 
housing. 

2.3.3 DWP have provided New Burdens funding to assist Councils with extra administrative 
costs and have increased Discretionary Housing Payment grants to help customers 
with the reduction – it should be noted the increase does not cover all the reductions. 

2.4    Two Child Limit 

2.4.1 From April 2017 the DWP have introduced legislation to restrict Benefits to families       
having a third child from April 2017 to the two child rate; there are exceptions, for 
example multiple births.

2.4.2 New claims for Universal Credit where an applicant has more than two children will be 
redirected to legacy Benefits i.e. Housing Benefit.

49



2.5 Social rented sector rent restrictions 

2.5.1 Local Housing Allowance- (LHA) rates in social housing – the implementation of a Cap 
on Housing Benefit and LHA rates in the social rented sector has been delayed by 1 
year, to April 2019. 

2.5.2 The cap will apply to all supported housing tenancies from April 2019, with Government 
providing additional funding to Local Authorities, so that they can meet the additional 
costs of supported housing in their area. 

2.5.3 For general needs, the cap will now apply from April 2019 for all tenants on Universal 
Credit, and to Housing Benefit tenants whose tenancies began or were renewed since 
April 2016. For information, LHA rates determine the level of Housing Benefit and 
Universal Credit for private sector rents.                                        

3.0 Options 

3.1 The report is for information purposes

4.0 Reasons for recommendations 

4.1 The report is for information only 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Risk

The report is for information only

5.2 Financial

The report is for information only

5.3 Legal

The report is for information only

5.4 Equality and Diversity

Not applicable.

Background papers: - None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post: Adrian Mills – Strategic Manager (Benefits)
Email: Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk

50

mailto:Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk


ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP

Report of Paul Corney - Head of ARP

To: ARP Joint Committee, 28 March 2017

Subject: The Anglia Revenues Partnership (ARP) Transformation Programme update.

Purpose: That the update on the Transformation Programme at Appendix 1 is noted 
and to report on the progress in respect of the plan.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1.1.1 In September 2016 a Transformation Programme was agreed by the Joint Committee. 
The programme took the place of a Service Delivery Plan and has been developed by 
the Operational Improvement Board.

1.1.2 The ARP Partner Councils face a number of significant challenges and changes in the 
next few years that are likely to result in root and branch changes to finances and 
services and the ARP must prepare for these changes. 

1.1.3 In setting the ARP medium term financial strategy, members agreed that savings 
targets should be incorporated into the budget from 2017/18 onwards to reflect the 
estimated loss of grants from Central Government.

1.1.4 The overarching purpose of the programme is to secure continued and improved 
delivery of excellent services to customers whilst creating efficiencies and savings at 
least equivalent to the estimated loss of government grant funding.

1.1.5 A part of the overall strategy also relates to achieving efficiencies in levels of staff 
required to process the work we receive which can then be used where trading 
opportunities are identified through the ARP trading company and where members 
agree to business cases that may be brought forward from the commercial strand.

1.1.6 The Programme Management  will include additional resource where necessary to 
support the Strategic Management Team to deliver such a critical service 
transformation. The Programme is being monitored by the Operational Improvement 
Board.

1.1.7 The transformation programme has three strands; Reduction in Avoidable Contact and 
Automation of Processes (Digital), Commercial, Partnership and Trading 
Opportunities, and Organisational Vision and Development.

1.2 Avoidable contact – Digital strand. 

1.2.1 The ARP meet regularly with all partner customer services teams (CS) to resolve any 
issues and to determine potential improvements in the ways that work flows from the 
CS teams to the ARP back office.

1.2.2 As part of the transformation programme the CS teams met with ARP officers every 2 
weeks to develop the actions in reducing avoidable contact and increasing the 

Recommendation(s):

 That the progress in respect of the Transformation Programme is noted.

51

Agenda Item 7



availability of online services available to customers. These meetings are held 4 weekly 
now.

1.2.3 The programme of actions included in this strand of the transformation have been split 
into 3 distinct projects which will have been progressed and implemented by teams 
made up of officers from partner councils CS teams and the ARP:

 Digital services (project manager Chris Bolton from West Suffolk) – this project is 
looking at the most common service requests for Revenues and Benefits and a number 
of workshops have been held to redesign processes and introduce the use of online 
facilities wherever possible. It will introduce some online forms that customers, and 
officers on customer’s behalf, will complete that will automatically update the back 
office systems.

 Digital communications (project manager Darren Knight from East Suffolk) – this 
project is looking to improve the website through mapping the most common 
transactions and redesigning the pages to make customers journeys as easy as 
possible. This project is also looking at the use of other social media such as Twitter, 
YouTube and Facebook developing videos to describe how to access entitlements to 
council tax discounts and providing other such information.

 Other communications – this project is reviewing letters and other written 
communications that currently lead to the highest number of customer enquiries to 
make them easier to understand for customers and to include all relevant information 
to seek to avoid the need for contact

1.2.4 A forms designer and automated forms have been procured and this will facilitate 
automation of transactions. The design and introduction of new forms will be 
implemented during the 2017/18 financial year with the aim of achieving savings from 
2018/19 as projected in Appendix 1

1.2.5 The yearend bills have been redesigned and a leaflet is being sent with them to 
encourage sign up to e-billing and online services. The customer services staff will also 
be encouraging sign up when dealing with customers. The sign up during 2017/18 will 
lead to savings in postage and other costs from 2018/19 the savings target is shown  
in Appendix 1

1.2.6 A social enterprise project is underway with the Lowestoft College to design 10 social 
media films covering the top five Council Tax and Housing Benefit enquiries. This 
project should direct customers to use the website. 

1.2.7 This strand of the programme will lead to reduced footfall and telephone enquiries and 
it is estimated that savings of approximately £250k will be shared by the partners 
Customer teams and through reduction in postages. If the project is successful in its 
aims, each Authority will see a saving in its corporate customer services delivery.

1.3 Commercial, Partnership and Trading Opportunities

1.3.1 The Income generation and Commercial strand looks to develop potential areas for 
additional income to the ARP partners in a number of ways: increased revenue from 
collection of Council Tax and Business Rates; additional partners in areas where we 
can create greater efficiencies such as the Enforcement team; trading opportunities 
through the ARP trading company; and efficiencies in the running of operations.

1.3.2 Some elements of the transformation programme are already progressing well such as 
the expansion of the Enforcement Agency. South Norfolk District Council has already 
joined the Agency which will bring about greater economies of scale leading to 
increased collection of Council Tax and Business Rates and two other Councils are 
considering joining in the future.

1.3.3 From the 01/04/2017 the Section 113 agreement with Norwich City Council will 
commence and The ARP Strategic Management Team will also manage Norwich 

52



City’s Revenues and Benefits team. The agreement will generate efficiencies of £80k 
per annum initially and is likely to lead to other efficiencies in the future.

1.3.4 The in-house Enforcement Agency continues to provide a more sympathetic service to 
our residents and it is also anticipated that, although the initial business case estimated 
surpluses of £150k, surpluses will be over £500k. The additional surpluses arise form 
a deliberately cautious initial business case due to the fact that new legislation made 
it unclear how matters would unfold.

1.3.5 The Fraud and Compliance team are also producing excellent results in identifying 
incorrect and fraudulent claims for discounts, they are also identifying business rates 
hereditaments that have changed use or have grown in size. The performance report 
provides more information.

1.3.6 The ARP have trialled tenancy fraud investigations and we have been approached by 
Housing Associations asking  us to carry out work for them on an ongoing basis in the 
future. This work would be through the ARP trading company once the Companies 
business plan has been agreed.

1.3.7 The ARP have also offered help to other Councils concerning improvements that they 
can make in automation of data received from the DWP and in general terms 
concerning the management of their services. In the future a business case may be 
brought concerning trading such services through the ARP trading company 

1.4 Organisational Vision and Development

1.4.1 All of the challenges relating to ARP over the next few years will require a strong and 
resilient work force who can flex and change with the ever changing demands. This 
will require clear and focussed planning and communication.

1.4.2 A number of elements have been put in place that will continue to ensure that the ARP 
team are skilled and have the opportunity to become multi-skilled, this will help us to 
adapt to change in the future such as Universal Credit by redeploying staff to other 
areas of work, potentially including trading. 

These measures include:

 A process has started to develop a bottoms up approach to define the values 
and behaviours that customers and employees would expect.

o The ARP have staff employed by 4 Councils and each Council has a 
defined culture and value system

o The Operational Improvement Board are considering the link between 
each councils own corporate vision and the ARP contribution to those 
visions

 A workforce strategy is being developed which will determine the measures 
required to develop the organisation and a resource strategy

o A training needs assessment has taken place and a programme of 
training has been developed using existing partner resources wherever 
possible.

o A learning and Development plan to increase skills and knowledge has 
been designed to give necessary training and support in various service 
areas and for different management levels within the ARP

o The establishment will be reviewed in the context of future demand and 
stability of existing resource; retirees, long term sick, use of agency staff 
and staff retention.

1.5 Transformation Programme resourcing.

1.5.1 Members agreed that an investment fund taken from surpluses and new burdens 
funding carried forward from 2015/16 will be used with the agreement of OIB to develop 

53



and implement the necessary changes to generate income and savings of £531k in 
2017/18 and £1017k in 2018/19 included in the budget.

1.5.2 It is currently anticipated that the investment fund will meet the requirements of the 
actions described in this report however, if additional funds are needed then new 
burdens funding received in 2016/17 and 2017/18 could be used upon OIB authorising 
expenditure.

1.5.3 It will be challenging to deliver all of the elements of the programme however early 
indications are very positive, if the targets in the transformation programme are 
achieved then  it is estimated that the measures detailed in the transformation 
programme, shown in Appendix 1, will lead to savings and income that will meet or 
exceed the £531k and  £1.017 Million efficiency target in the budget for 2017/18 and 
2018/19

2 Options 

 To suggest changes and additions to the Transformation Programme.
 To note the progress made in the Transformation Programme.

3 Reasons for recommendations 

A Transformation Programme expands upon the Service Delivery Plan and develops 
the actions required to achieve the short to medium term priorities of the ARP in 
delivering services as effectively, efficiently and economically as possible.

4 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Risk

If the Programme is not agreed then the direction and priorities of service delivery may 
lose focus. The Plan allows members to monitor and direct the development of service 
provision. 

The programme may not meet all of the savings and income targets it is aiming to 
deliver.

4.2 Financial

The Transformation Programme requires the ARP officers to monitor and report on 
financial matters of relevance to OIB and the Section 151 officers of the ARP.

4.3 Legal

None.

4.4 Equality and Diversity

Not applicable.

Background papers:- None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post: Paul Corney (Head of the ARP)
Email: paul.corney@angliarevenues.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix 1 – Updated Transformation Programme (Ready4business)

54



Progress at 
31/10/2016

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-2020
Define Vision, Values and Culture of the 
organisation. 

Initial analysis, share results, internal idea 
generation to define vision, values and culture, 
colloborate with external provider for workshops

ARP HR Strategy   - ARP 
Vision and Mission

HRBP progressing 

Commence Vision, Values and Culture Project Plan 
and workshops to achieve desired outcome

ARP HR Strategy   - ARP 
Vision and Mission

HRBP progressing 

Communication throughout project and regular 
updates

ARP HR Strategy   - ARP 
Vision and Mission

HRBP progressing 

By the end of 19/20 deliver 10% savings, 
creation of capacity to do more.  If 
efficiencies not achieved through Digital and 
commercial strands

HRBP progressing 

Complete TNA on all staff and management to 
identify competencies and skills gaps

ARP HR Strategy - Skills 
Inventory

Complete and ongoing

Formulate L&D plan to increase skills and knowledge 
in various service areas and at differnet levels within 
ARP

ARP HR Strategy - Skills 
Inventory

Complete and ongoing

Identify career pathways for succession planning / 
development opportunities

ARP HR Strategy - Skills 
Inventory

Complete and ongoing

Development of a Workforce Strategy 
enabling Work Force Planning to be 
embedded within the organisation.

Assess current ARP workforce capacity and 
forecasting requirements through reviewing 
establishment, organisational structure, retirees, 
long term sick, use of agencies and advertsing 
techniques

ARP HR Strategy - 
Workforce Planning

Monthly analysis taking 
place.

Organisational Design ARPO
Development of a Resource Strategy and 
Investment Strategy to provide a framework 
to support ongoing organisational 
development.

Commitment and openess of those involved in 
sharing ideas.  Realistic and cost effective 
proposal by external provider.  Results of Staff 
Survey

Links with other 
Projects/Strategy

ongoing

Commitment to project from staff and support 
form Management

Jun-17

READY  4  BUSINESS  ARP PROGRAMME DELIVERY PLAN - Organisational Development

Code
Work stream AIM Interdependancies Target dateAction Required

Finance: Estimated costs/Savings; currently estimated

On-going

Agree and implement a shared identity and 
values to fulfil the savings agenda and 
commercialisation and trading arm.

Monthly analysis of establihment against 
structure.  OIB/financial approval to meet 
recruitment needs

on-going

Honest review of training needs and skills gaps

Approval to update via ARP Newsletter and All 
Staff Briefings

Financial commitment to invest in increasing 
knowledge and skill base

Formal qualifications routes aprroved and multi-
faceted learning opportunities

Mar-16

Aug-16

on-going

55



Estimate at 
31/10/2016

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-2020
Simplify communications to make them 
easier for customers to understand. Refocus 
communications to encourage take up of e-
billing and e-transactions.

Initial analysis, share results, look at highest volume 
of queries received from customers. Establish focus 
groups to identify issues and solutions - test 
solutions with customer forums to further improve.

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

-£50,000 -£75,000

On track 10% sign up to 
e-billing will achieve 
over £50k

Systems thinking workshops documenting the 
customer journey or moments of truth in the top 10 
ARP processes will take place detailing the present 
end to end process from partner organisation to ARP

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

-£50,000 -£75,000

On track workshops 
taking place to 
redesign processes

Data to be collected and a digital mapto be 
developed, using google maps, of locations where 
Wifi and Pcs with interenet capability are available.

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

-£50,000 -£75,000

Complete - WDC/SCDC 
live and avaialble for 
other partners

Enterprise project with Lowestoft College creating a 
range of R&B social media content concerning Ctax 
discounts and exemptions, HB and CTS, and how to 
apply for these services

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

On target - work 
commissioned - drafts 
received

Development of material and communications 
strategy to market the use of digital solutions to be 
developed

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

Developed leaflets with 
WDC/SCDC - to be sent 
with year end bills

Procurement of CS software and online 
forms that will offer easier sign up to e-
services and assisted completion of forms 
that will update the back office systems.

Common specification to be agreed to include R&B 
forms and integration with existing CRM systems of 
partners (single sign on). The online forms will need 
to be developed to populate back office systems

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

-£50,000 -£75,000

On target - 
procurement complete 
PO to be issued 
November

on track - awaiting 
each Councils estimate 
of cash and non cash 
savings -£50,000 -£75,000

Back office automation to be developed by ARP 
with members of CS forum invovled in testing - 
CS teams will use forms when face to face or on 
phone with customers.

End Dec 2016 
procured - forms 
developed to 
replace current 
forms by end Sept 
2017

To be led by Customer Forum group with project 
lead to come from Customer Services teams.

Partners own digital and 
customer focussed projects

To be initially developed for East Suffolk sho 
already have live UC postcodes - then to be 
offered for roll out for all partners to create ARP 
wide information.

End Dec 2016

To be developed by East Suffolk and ARP with 
the college and then brought to CS forum for 
comment and agreed sign off.

End Dec 2016

To be developed by East Suffolk and ARP and 
then brought to CS forum for comment and 
agreed sign off.

End Dec 2016

Reduction of avoidable 
contact and automation 

of processes

The workshops are to include end to end process 
and cycle times, confirmation of each partner 
authority’s IT platform, (front end applications range 
from Civica Contact 360 to Lagan & Firmstep CRM), 
associated costs and strategic IT direction

To facilitate and market the website as the 
first point of contact through digital 
solutions. To establish the use of online 
forms that will update the back office 
systems for Revenues and Benefits 
transactions.

To develop use of social media on partners 
websites and to map the whereabouts of 
access for customers to PCs, Wifi and to 
encourage custoemrs to devlepop the skills 
to use online facilities.

READY  4  BUSINESS  ARP PROGRAMME DELIVERY PLAN - Reduction in avoidable contact and automation of processes (Digital)

Code
Work stream AIM Action Required Interdependancies Links with other 

Projects/Strategy
Target date

To be led by Customer Forum group with project 
lead to come from Customer Services teams.

End Feb 2017

To be led by Customer Forum group with project 
lead to come from Customer Services teams.

End Sept 2017

End Sept 2017

Finance: Estimated costs/Savings; currently estimated

56



Estimate at 31/10/16
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-2020

To establish a model for Councils to join the 
Enforcement Agency in house team. The model will 
create circumstances that will allow other councils 
to share risks and benefits of the enforcement of 
debts in their areas.

-£350,000 -£400,000 -£450,000

already ahead of target 
for 2017/18 and a new 
council joined from 
04/11/16 and interest 
already from 2 others

Fraud teams - to carry out functions for other 
councils and external organisations to 
generate income through ARPT.

To develop the potential to trade fraud services to 
Registered Providers in the first instance and other 
Councils or concerns later. The fraud team can offer 
to look at Tenancy Fraud and "Right To Buy" 
requests on a commercial basis

-£105,000 -£150,000 -£150,000

£105k secured from 
County Council and 
interest from a number 
of  Registered 
Providers - on track

Develop revenues services to be able to offer to 
carry out collection services for other councils - the 
development of resilience service will complement 
this work.

-£50,000

ARPT not yet in place 
and so Company 
business case not 
developed - action 
rests with Company 
Board

Consider communications strategy and marketing 
necessary to raise ARP profile and to advertise the 
ARP / ARPT offering. The marketing will cover 
contributions from members, officers and general 
marketing.

Not yet deemed 
necessary to procure - 
sufficient interest from 
word of mouth at this 
time.

Investigate the opportunity to become an 
accredited trainer, enabling accredited training. 
Become a centre of excellence and be recognised as 
a quality provider of training and service delivery

ARPT not yet in place 
and so Company 
business case not 
developed - action 
rests with Company 
Board

To generate income through the 
provision/sharing of management and 
consultancy services to other councils

Develop a business case for Joint committee to 
approve trading/sharing of management and 
consultancy services through ARPT

-£80,000 -£120,000 -£120,000

From 01/04/2017 
Management through 
S113 will secure £80k 
per annum

ARPT not yet in place 
and so Company 
business case not 
developed - action 
rests with Company 
Board-£50,000

The ARP training resource would need to 
increase if we were to look to provide external 
courses - the existing trainers are fully utilised in 
training new recruits and refresher training.

-£50,000

READY  4  BUSINESS  ARP PROGRAMME DELIVERY PLAN - Commercial, Partnership and Trading opportunities

Code
Work stream AIM Action Required Interdependancies Links with other 

Projects/Strategy
Target date

Finance: Estimated costs/Savings; currently estimated

Consideration will be given to maintaining 
services for the ARP partners and so dependant 
on success resource requirements will become a 
factor

Commercial and 
trading opportunities

The service will be delegated to a partner 
council and the terms of the partnership will be 
agreed by OIB. The introduction of new councils 
to the service will involve work for the West 
Suffolk IT team and external systems providers.

The team already bring efficiences funded by 
County Councils - trading externally will need to 
be resourced once RPs have committed.

To continue to provide excellent services to 
the ARP partners. The success in developing 
trading opportunities will be reliant on 
maintaining our profile as a low cost high 
performer and in marketing our successes 
more widely.

This will not be achievable within existing 
resource - a decision will need to be made 
concerning investment and risk if additional staff 
are recruited - with Universal Credit we amy be 
able to reskill and transfer staff into revenues 
services.

Partners teams will not be likely to be able to 
resource a significant piece of work and so 
additional resource will have to be considered or 
the work can be split into defined timelines and 
topics using external resource.

To increase resilience and to generate 
addition surpluses through the expansion of 
the Enforcement Agency and through 
developing a multi-skilled resilience team - 
the resilience team will enable the ARP to 
sustain performance levels during peaks of 
work and to cover sickness and turnover 
more efficiently

To develop a business case to consider the creation 
of a resilience team. The resilience team will be 
funded through reduction in the annual cost of 
agency staff and overtime. Hwere workload an 
resource permits the team would do work for other 
councils through ARPT.

Where excess capacity is sold on to other 
councils the IT team will help to build 
connectivity where possible to other councils 
systems. The resilience team will offer resource 
to achieve excellent performance which is 
essential for future marketing opportunities.57



Research and develop business cases for 
expansion of services into other areas that fit 
with current ARP transactional services for 
public and private sectors - such as Free 
School Meals and Adult Social Care 
Payments for County Councils - to develop 
potential income and to improve services 
and income for schools and residents.

An initial piece of work is under way to research the 
market to understand what the opportunities are. If 
the research continues to suggest that ARP/ARPT 
can offer efficiencies in administration and / or 
potential improvements in schools pupil premiums 
then, a full business case will be developed.

Currently on hold 
pending generation of 
ARPT business plan

Total Forecast Efficiency

£0 -£535,000 -£1,020,000 -£1,145,000
Efficiency Target in Budget

-£531,824 -£1,017,397 -£1,017,397
Forecast Shortfall/(Over Achieved)

-£3,176 -£2,603 -£127,603

  
 

The parties currently providing services will 
decide whether they see advantages and 
efficiencies in ARP/ARPT carrying out this work 
for them - there may also be TUPE implications.

58



Document is Restricted

59

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

72

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

76

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes

	5a Operational Performance
	5b Balanced Scorecard
	Layout 1 - simple added graph
	All Councils Graphs
	JC Supporting sheet Breckland
	JC Graphs Breckland 
	JC Supporting sheet ECDC
	JC Graphs ECDC
	JC Supporting sheet Fenland
	JC Graphs Fenland
	JC Supporting sheet FH
	JC Graphs Forest Heath
	JC Supporting sheet St Ed
	JC Graphs St Edmundsbury
	JC Supporting sheet Coastal
	JC Graphs Coastal
	JC Supporting sheet Waveney
	JC Graphs Waveney

	5c Financial Performance
	6 Welfare Reform Update (Standing Item)
	7 Transformation Programme Update
	Ready 4 Business Plan updated 06.03.2017
	OD Design


	11 Risk Based Verification Policy Review Report - March 2017
	12 Partnership Working through Section 101 Agreement
	Partnership Appendix 1


